MCB-ARIF HABIB

Savings and Investments Limited

Crpscaa

report ZU18

Funds Under Management of
MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited



ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 Fund’s Information 566
2 Report of the Directors of the Management Company 567
3 Report of the Fund Manager 576
4 Trustee Report to the Unit Holders 577
5 Report of the Shariah Advisory Board 578
6 Independent Auditor’s Report to the Unit Holders 579
7 Statement of Assets and Liabilities 583
8 Income Statement 584
9 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 585
10 Statment of Movement in Unit Holder’s Fund 586
11 Cash Flow Statement 587
12  Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 588
13  Pattern of Units Holding by Size 619
14  Performance Table 620
15 Proxy Issued by Fund 621

565 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND




FUND’S INFORMATION

Management Company

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee

Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Operating Officer &
Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Trustee

Bankers

Auditors

Legal Advisor

Transfer Agent

Rating

566 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Limited
24th Floor, Centre Point, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway
Near K.P.T. Interchange, Karachi.

Mian Muhammad Mansha Chairman
Mr. Nasim Beg Vice Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem Chief Executive Officer
Dr. Syed Salman Ali Shah Director
Mr. Haroun Rashid Director
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Director
Mr. Samad A. Habib Director
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Director
Director
Mr. Haroun Rashid Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Member
Mr. Nasim Beg Member
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Nasim Beg Member
Dr. Syed Salman Ali Shah Chairman
Mr. Nasim Beg Member
Mr. Haroun Rashid Member
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem Member

Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem
Mr. Muhammad Asif Mehdi Rizvi

Mr. Abdul Basit

Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Ltd.
CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’'S.M.C.H.S

Main Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi

Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326053

Web: www.cdcpakistan.com

Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

United Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Meezan Bank Limited

Al-Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Silk Bank Limited

MCB Islamic Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitian Bank Limited

Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Progressive Plaza, Beaumount Road P.O. Box 15541
Karachi, Sindh-75530, Pakistan.

Bawaney & Partners
3rd & 4th Floor, 68 C, Lane 13, Bukhari Commercial Area
Phase VI, D.H.A., Karachi

MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investments Limited
24th Floor, Centre Point,

Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway

Near K.P.T. Interchange, Karachi.

AM2++Asset Manager Rating assigned by PACRA




REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dear Investor,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, We are pleased to present Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund accounts review
for the year ended June 30, 2018.

ECONOMY AND MONEY MARKET OVERVIEW

FY18 has been a rollercoaster ride of contradicting economic indicators with benign inflation and healthy LSM growth
positively contributed to the economy, while mounting fiscal pressure, falling FX reserves, and political turmoil created a
negative impact on the economy. Upward trending global commodity prices, especially rising crude oil prices, further
added to the woes of the local economy.

GDP growth is expected to set at a record 10 years high of ~5.7% supported by a robust industrial and services sector
growth. The marked end of power crises along with easing monetary cycle has led to an expansion in LSM growth which
is expected to post a growth of ~7% for FY18. Inflation as measured by CPI has averaged ~4.0% owing to adequate
supply of commodities and a stable currency during the most part of the year. However, for FY19, we expect CPI to jack
up to average of ~7.5% owing to rising commodity prices along with weakness in currency. Furthermore, the weaker
currency is also expected to shoot up the core inflation above 8.0%.

External sector has been the Achilles heel as a record high current account deficit along with financial flows by both
bilateral and multilateral institutions have caused a scarcity of dollars. Current account deficit soared to USD 18 billion,
nearly 5.8% of the GDP raising alarm bells for the economy. As a result of which, foreign exchange reserves of SBP have
depleted by USD 6.5 bn during FY18 to USD 9.7 bn, providing a mere import coverage of ~2.0x. By large, Pakistan could
be heading towards another IMF program during the second quarter of next fiscal year unless significant flows are generated
via the amnesty scheme.

During FY18 State Bank of Pakistan increased Policy Rate by a cumulative 75bps mainly due to ballooning twin deficits,
declining real interest rates and rapid increase in imports. In anticipation of an interest rate hike, bond yield curve showed
an upward trajectory particularly during the second half of FY18. Pace of widening trade deficit remained alarmingly high
which kept on diluting Forex reserves, keeping investors away from longer tenor securities. To extend maturity profile SBP
introduced Floater rate 10 year bond with a base rate of 6-month MTB weighted average yield. Healthy participation of
PKR 174 billion was witnessed in the very first auction of 10 year Floater bond out of which a total of PKR 20 billion was
accepted at a rate of benchmark + 50 bps. Liquidity remained comfortable throughout FY18 owing to regular OMOs
conducted by SBP. Scarcity of Shariah Compliant avenues continued in period under review as there was no fresh issuance
of ljara SUKUK despite ample liquidity in the market.

EQUITIES MARKET OVERVIEW

Equities turned red after a span of nearly 9 years, as the benchmark index lost ~10% during the year. Both economic and
political factors continued to haunt the investors; with the dominant theme prevailing around the external account crisis.
Foreigners' in view of weak currency, kept offloading local equities, selling USD 288 mn of stocks which was mainly
absorbed by Insurance companies (~USD 204 Mn) and Companies (~USD 100 Mn) . Trading volumes during the year
averaged around 174 mn shares/ USD 8.15 bn depicting a massive decline of ~49%/47% YoY respectively.
Cyclicals had the worst year as emerging concerns on the economic growth kept the investors at bay. Cement and Autos
were major laggards as they lost ~42% and 30% respectively. Cements declined due to increasing coal prices and imminent
supply additions in the sector. While, Autos lost mainly due to a weak local currency along with negative sentiments
emanating post budget due to government's announcement of barring non-filers from purchasing vehicles. Power sector
shrank by ~20% due to rising circular debt resulting in non-payment of dividends by some companies and shut-down of
some FO plants post government orders. E&Ps and Fertilizers were the only major sectors providing positive return,
gaining 20% and 3% respectively. Against the market movement, E&Ps posted a considerable gain of ~20% YoY due to
surge in average oil prices by 29%. Fertilizer rallied due to improved sector dynamics in the form of comfortable inventory
levels and enhanced pricing power of the manufacturers being reflected in increased fertilizer prices post-budget.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the fund delivered a return of -4.06% as against its benchmark return of -7.96%.
On the equities front, the overall allocation was 48.8% at the end of the period under review. The fund decreased its
exposure in Power Generation & Distribution while increased exposure in Cement, Fertilizer and Oil & Gas Exploration
Companies during the period.

On the fixed income side, there was no exposure towards Sukuk at the end of the period under review.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 stood at Rs. 3,634 million as compared to Rs. 1,485 million as at June
30, 2017 registering an increase of 144.71%.

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2018 was Rs. 70.0492 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 73.0135
per unit as at June 30, 2017 registering a decrease of Rs. 2.9643 per unit.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

For the next year, the economic growth is expected to slightly slow down as a weak currency and tighter monetary policy
will rein on the consumption patterns. However, increased power supply along with the documentation of economy will
provide a respite to the economic managers during this critical juncture. We share the optimism on better governance &
long term prospects for economic revival amid more focused and sincere efforts to address chronic issues on economic
front by the new government; however, the path is likely to be tough and with a number of potentially un-popular policy
steps. Given initial plans of PTI (ruling party) some sense of policy steps can be expected but given the precarious
economic conditions, we think immediate term measures to address twin deficits are critical.
Fiscal side is also expected to weaken as reckless spending by the government will cause fiscal deficit to cross above
6.0% of GDP. Given pressures on the external front along with rising inflation, State Bank is expected to further tighten
the monetary policy, with 100 bps already increased, which shall result in higher debt servicing cost for the government
during the next fiscal year. Along with entry to the IMF program, which will aim to curtail the fiscal deficit, developmental
expenditures will be sharply cut during the next year.

On the equity side, post elections, we shall closely monitor the environment to incorporate the new policy guidance as it
becomes available. In broader terms, we believe, the last two years market performance (down approx. 20% from peak
levels) has reflected the concerns on political and economic direction & also reflected in performance of cyclical stocks
where correction in stock prices is even sharper. We continue to reiterate our stance that current levels offer little downside
potential which puts in a lot of comfort for long term investors. We believe upside in stocks shall unveil only gradually as
confidence reigns back and economic policies shape the outlook in the expected manner. Therefore, going forward, stocks
offer long term investment opportunity with rewards for patient investors. We continue to track trends in the economic
indicators of the country and adjust our portfolio accordingly. Our Top-Down analysis favors sectors that benefit from
currency depreciation and higher interest rates; however, we cannot ignore the individual company dynamics along with
their prices that can play an important role in security selection.

Corporate Governance

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. With seven (7) non-executive directors
including three (3) independent Directors on the Board, as governing body of the Management Company, the Board is
accountable to the unit holders for good corporate governance. Management is continuing to comply with the provisions
of best practices set out in the code of corporate governance particularly with regard to independence of non-executive
directors. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange,
which clearly defined the role and responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The following specific statements are being given to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance:

a. Financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan , provisions of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003, Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008, requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives issued by the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored with
ongoing efforts to improve it further.

f. There are no doubts what so ever upon the Fund's ability to continue as going concern.

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.

h. Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any have been fully disclosed
in the financial statements.

i. The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund is not applicable on the Fund
but applies to the Management Company; hence no disclosure has been made in the Directors' Report.

j- Al the directors have completed the Directors Training Programme course or are exempt from attending training
course due to sufficient working experience.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

k. The detailed pattern of unit holding, as required by NBFC Regulations are enclosed.
I.  The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in financial statements. Below is the details
of committee meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2018:
1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘:f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid 9 9 6 3
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 9 -
3. Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 7 2
4, Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg 9 9 7 2

2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, five (5) meetings of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance
of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
Name of Persons ‘;f Attend L
meetings endance eave
held required Attended granted
1. Dr. Syed Salman Shah 5 5 5 -
2. Mr. Nasim Beg 5 5 5 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 5 5 5 -
4. Mr. Haroun Rashid 5 5 3 2
5. Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem -CEO 5 5 5 -

3. In the meeting held on September 14, 2018, the Risk Committee of the Board was formed consisting of the
following members:

(i) Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg - Chairman
(i) Mr. Nasim Beg
(iii) Mr. Ahmed Jahangir
EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The fund’s external auditors, EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants, have retired during the year & A.F.Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants have been appointed as an external auditors of the fund for financial year ending June 30, 2019.
A.F.Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have also expressed their willingness to act as the fund auditors.
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On behalf of Directors,

Muhammad Saqgib Saleem Nasim Beg

Chief Executive Officer . - .
September 14, 2018 Director / Vice Chairman
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Type and Category
Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (ALHAA) is an Open-End Shariah Compliant Asset Allocation Scheme.
Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for ALHAA is KMI-30 Index and Six (6) months average deposit rates of three (3) A rated scheduled
Islamic Banks or Islamic Windows of Conventional Banks as selected by MUFAP on the basis of actual proportion held
by the Scheme.

Investment Objective

The objective of the fund is to provide medium to long term capital appreciation through investing in Shariah compliant
investments in Pakistan and Internationally.

Investment Strategy

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (ALHAA) is an open-end asset allocation fund which seeks to achieve its objective
through investing in a portfolio of Shariah compliant investments diversified across the capital markets of Pakistan as well
as keeping a limited exposure internationally. The Fund is managed through an active management strategy with dynamic
allocation towards different asset classes. The investment process is driven by fundamental research. The domestic
portfolio of the Fund primarily invests in fundamentally strong Shariah compliant equities, high quality Sukuks and other
Shariah compliant instruments. For equities, fundamental outlook of sectors/companies and DCF (Discounted Cash Flow)
valuations are the primary factors in sectors' allocation and stock selection. Major portion of the Fund's portfolio is high
quality liquid stocks.

Manager's Review
During the period under review, the fund delivered a return of -4.06% as against its benchmark return of -7.96%.

On the equities front, the overall allocation was 48.8% at the end of the period under review. The fund increased its
exposure in Fertilizer, Oil & Gas Exploration Companies and Cement during the period.

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 stood at Rs. 3,634 million as compared to Rs. 1,485 million as at June
30, 2017 registering an increase of 144.71%. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2018 was Rs. 70.0492
as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 73.0135 per unit as at June 30, 2017 registering a decrease of Rs. 2.9643 per unit.

Other Cement, 7.7% Fertilizer, 7.6% Oil % Gas Exploration
Assets, 0.5% Companies, 12.6%

Textile
Composite, 3.6%

Other Power Generation &

Sectors, 11.8% Cash. 50.7% Distribution, 5.5%
, A7

Awais Abdul Sattar, CFA
Fund Manager

Karachi: September 14, 2018
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘',
S.M.C.H.5., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326020 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Email: info@cdcpak.com
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 9 of Schedule V of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Alhamra
Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that MCB-Arif Habib
Savings and Investments Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in
all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2018 in
accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company
under the constitutive documents of the Fund:

(i)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance
with the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iii)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 19, 2018
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Alhamdulillah, We the Shariah Advisory Board of the Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund), are
issuing this report in accordance with the Offering document of the Fund. The scope of the report is to
express an opinion on the Shariah compliance of the Fund's activities.

It is the responsibility of M/s MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments limited (MCBAH), the management
company of the fund, to establish and maintain a system of internal controls to ensure compliance with
Shariah guidelines. Our responsibility is to express an opinion, based on our review of the representation

made by the management, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified.

A review is limited primarily to inquire to the Management Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the management company to comply with prescribed criteria. In the light of the

above, we hereby certify that:

*  We have reviewed and approved the modes of investment of ALHAA in the light of the Shariah
guidelines.

»  All the provisions of the scheme and investments made on account of ALHAA by Management
Company are Shariah Compliant and in accordance with the criteria established.

¢ On the basis of information provided by the Management Company, all the operations ol ALIAA
for the period from July 01, 2017 to June 30, 2018 have been in compliance with Shariah

principles.

During the year an amount of Rupees 939,247.20 was transferred to charity account. The total amount of
charity payable as at 30 June 2018 amounts to Rs. 939,247.20.

May Allah bless us with Tawfeeq to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful in this world and in

the hereafter, and forgive our mistakes.

AN
1

Karachi: September 14, 2018 Dr Ejaz Samdani

For and on behalf of Shariah Advisory Boar
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Unit holders of ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (the Fund), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2018, and income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Fund as at 30 June 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1. Existence and valuation of equity investments
As disclosed in note 6 to the accompanying | We performed a combination of audit procedures
financial statements of the Fund for the focusing on the existence and valuation of
year ended 30 June 2018, the investments investments. Our key procedure included the
held by the Fund comprised of listed shares following:
which represent 49% of the total assets of
the Fund as at the year end.

- We tested controls over acquisition, disposals
and periodic valuation of investments portfolio.
e
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
In view of the significance of investment in - We performed substantive audit procedures on
relation to the total assets and the Net year-end balance of portfolio including review
Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund, we have custodian’s statement, and related
considered the existence and valuation of reconciliations, re-performance of investment

valuations on the basis of quoted market prices
at the Pakistan Stock Exchange as at 30 June
2018.

such investments as a key audit matter.

- We assessed the Fund's compliance with the
requirements of Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 (the Requlations) in relation to the
concentration of investments and exposure
limits prescribed in such Regulations and the
adequacy of disclosures as may be applicable in
situations of non-compliance.

- We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in respect
of the investment portfolio in accordance with
the requirements of the Regulations and
whether the Fund's disclosures in relation to the
valuation of investments are compliant with the
relevant accounting requirements.

2. Amendment to the NBFC Regulations, 2008

As disclosed in note 4.1 to the We assessed the appropriateness of the recognition,
accompanying financial statements of the measurement and presentation of “element of

Fund for the year ended 30 June 2018, the | income /loss" in accordance with the amended
Securities and Exchange Commission of provisions of the NBFC Regulations. We also
Pakistan through its SRO no. 756(1)/2017 considered the guidelines issued by MUFAP in

dated 03 August 2017 made certain respect of the accounting for element of income /
amendments in the Non-Banking Finance loss as per the revised Regulations and assessed its

Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, | implementation by the Fund.
2008 (the NBFC Regulations).

These amendments are considered We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures regarding
significant to our audit because application the change in accounting policy with respect to

of the said amendments resulted in change | element of income / loss in accordance with the

in accounting policy relating to presentation | requirements of the relevant financial reporting
“element of income / loss” in the financial standards and the guidance issued by MUFAP in
statements and certain additional relation thereto.

disclosures with respect to 'Income
Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in
Unit Holders' Fund' (the Statements).

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. )
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a quarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
o
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Conclude on the appropriateness ol .....cyevvcve = ——w —. 1€ G0ING concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence ohta:ned whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a staterment that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman.

(Y ST

Chartered Accountants
Date: 14 September 2018

Karachi
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000) ------
ASSETS
Balances with banks 5 1,892,537 846,966
Investments 6 1,819,611 652,922
Dividend, profit and other receivables 7 10,681 6,214
Advances, deposits and prepayments 8 3,245 4,302
Total assets 3,726,074 1,510,404
LIABILITIES
Payable to the Management Company 9 14,056 5,443
Payable to the Trustee 10 420 233
Annual fee payable to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 11 2,369 1,122
Payable against purchase of investments 57,694 -
Accrued and other liabilities 12 17,998 18,348
Total liabilities 92,537 25,146
NET ASSETS 3,633,537 1,485,258
Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached) 3,633,537 1,485,258
Contingencies and commitments 13
----- (Number of units) -----
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 51,871,228 20,342,240
---------- (Rupees) ----------
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT 70.0492 73.0135

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs g 3

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

INCOME
Profit on bank deposits
Net gain on sale of investments
Net unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as:
‘at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'
Dividend income on investments classified as:
- 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'
- 'available-for-sale’
Impairment loss on investment in equity securities classified as 'available-for-sale’
Income from sukuk certificates
Income on term deposit musharika (TDM)
Reversal of Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)
Total income

EXPENSES

Remuneration of the Management Company

Sales tax on remuneration of the Management Company
Expenses allocated by the Management Company and related taxes
Selling and marketing expenses

Remuneration of the Trustee

Sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee

Annual fee to SECP

Auditors' remuneration

Brokerage, settlement and bank charges

Fees and subscription

Legal and professional charges

Shariah advisory fee

Printing and related costs

Donation / charity

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

Total expenses
Net (loss) / income for the year from operating activities

Net element of income and capital gains included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed

Net (loss) / income for the year before taxation
Taxation

Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation
Allocation of net (loss) / income for the year:

Net loss for the year after taxation
Income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting loss available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Note

9.1
9.2
9.3

10.1
10.2
11
14

15

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
79,140 15,021
3,566 221,411
(124,351) 9,694
48,662 12,478
8,177 27,446
(9,275) -
34 32
2,427 -

- 8,527
8,380 294,609
(49,881) (23,220)
(6,485) (3,015)
(2,818) (1,337)
(9,976) (1,593)
(3,494) (2,171)
(454) (264)
(2,369) (1,122)
(511) (702)
(6,852) (5,707)
(639) (191)
(143) (72)
(900) (900)
(112) (143)
(939) (626)
- (6,508)
(85,573) (47,571)
(77,193) 247,038
- 71,861
(77,193) 318,899
(77,193) 318,899

/*“7

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (77,193) 318,899
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year:

To be reclassified to income statement in subsequent periods:

Net unrealised diminution on re-measurement of investments
classified as 'available-for-sale' (15,144) (11,780)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (92,337) 307,119

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs - 3

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director

585 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND




STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Unrealised
appreciation /
(diminution)
Undistributed  on 'available-
Capital value income / (loss) for-sale’ Total Total

(Rupees in '000)
Net assets at beginning of the year 1,272,574 175,020 37,664 1,485,258 820,509

Issuance of 44,764,312 (2017: 19,133,229) units
- Capital value (at net assets value per unit at

beginning of the year) 3,268,399 - - 3,268,399 -
- Element of loss (90,700) - - (90,700) -
3,177,699 - - 3,177,699 1,436,268

Redemption of 13,235,324 (2017: 11,707,660) units
- Capital value (at net assets value per unit at

beginning of the year) 966,357 - - 966,357 -
- Element of loss (29,274) - - (29,274) —
937,083 - - 937,083 867,420

Net element of income and capital gains included in prices

of units issued less those in units redeemed - - - - (71,861)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (77,193) (15,144) (92,337) 307,119
Distribution during the year - - - - (139,357)
Net loss for the period less distribution - (77,193) (15,144) (92,337) 167,762
Net assets at end of the year 3,513,190 97,827 22,520 3,633,537 1,485,258
Undistributed income brought forward

- Realised 165,326 121,075

- Unrealised 9,694 109

175,020 121,184

Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital losses - -
- Excluding capital losses - -

Net loss / income for the year after taxation (77,193) 318,899

Element of loss and capital losses included in prices of units
issued less those in units redeemed - amount representing

unrealised loss - (125,706)
Distribution during the year - (139,357)
Undistributed loss carried forward 97,827 175,020

Undistributed loss carried forward

- Realised
- Unrealised
---------- (Rupees) =---------
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 73.0135 63.5232
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 70.0492 73.0135

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs - 3

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) / income for the year before taxation (77,193) 318,899
Adjustments for:
Net unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of investments classified as:

‘at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' 124,351 (9,694)
Impairment loss on investment in equity securities classified as 'available-for-sale' 9,275 -
Net element of income and capital gains included in prices

of units issued less those in units redeemed - (71,861)
Dividend income on investments classified as: -

- 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' (48,662) (12,478)

- 'available-for-sale' (8,177) (27,446)
Reversal of Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) - (8,527)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) - 6,508

(406) 195,401
(Increase) / decrease in assets
Receivable against sale of investments - 7,540
Investments (1,315,459) 41,676
Profit and other receivables (7,624) (2,582)
Advances, deposits and prepayments 1,057 (1,097)
(1,322,026) 45,537
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 8,613 3,096
Payable to the Trustee 187 73
Annual fee payable to SECP 1,247 341
Payable against purchase of investments 57,694 -
Accrued and other liabilities (350) (1,496)
67,391 2,014
Dividend received 59,996 38,612
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (1,195,045) 281,564
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units 3,177,699 1,438,283
Payments on redemption of units (937,083) (867,420)
Dividend paid - (139,357)
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,240,616 431,506
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year 1,045,571 713,070
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 846,966 133,896
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,892,537 846,966

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Vs - 3

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

2.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alhamra Islamic Asset Allocation Fund (formerly: Pakistan International Element Islamic Asset Allocation Fund) (the
Fund) was established under a Trust Deed executed between Arif Habib Investments Limited (the Management
Company, "AHIL") as Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as
Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed on December 14, 2005 and was approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules,
2003 (the NBFC rules).

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the
NBFC rules through a certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management
Company is situated at 24th Floor, Centre Point, Off. Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, Near KPT Interchange, Karachi,
Pakistan.

Pursuant to the merger of MCB-Asset Management Company and Arif Habib Investments Limited, the name of the
Management Company (Arif Habib Investments Limited being the surviving entity) has been changed from Arif
Habib Investments Limited to MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity
of the Fund is to make investment in shariah compliant investments in securities or instruments both inside and
outside Pakistan. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can
be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund. The Fund has been categorised as "Shariah compliant Asset
Allocation" scheme by the Board of Directors of the Asset Management Company in pursuant to Circular 7 of 2009
dated March 06, 2009 issued by the SECP.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) Limited has assigned an asset manager rating of AM2++ dated
December 28, 2017 to the Management Company and has assigned performance ranking of 4-Star dated May 24,
2018 to the Fund.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee
of the Fund.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Such standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies act 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

- The NBFC rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies, Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations)
and the requirements of Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have
been followed.

New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Fund has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation of IFRSs which
became effective for the current year:

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)
IAS 12 Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did not have
any effect on the financial statements.
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23

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or
interpretation:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)

IFRS 2 — Share-based Payments — Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments) January 01, 2018

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — (Amendments) January 01, 2018

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments July 01, 2018

IFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation -
(Amendments) January 01, 2019

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment
in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalized
IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018
IFRS 16 — Leases January 01, 2019
IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) January 01, 2019
IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —

(Amendments) January 01, 2019
IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property January 01, 2018

(Amendments)
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration January 01, 2018
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Fund's financial
statements in the period of initial application. However, the Fund is currently evaluating the requirements of IFRS-
9 and potential impact on the financial statements of the Fund.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been
issued by the IASB in December 2016 and December 2017. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively. The Fund expects that such
improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Fund's financial statements in the period of initial
application

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework)
in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for preparers of financial
statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The
purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent
accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret
the standards.
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Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose
of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date
(annual periods

Standards beginning on or after)
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 01, 2016
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investments that
are measured at fair value.

3.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Judgments made by management in the application of accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment are explained in notes 4.1 and 4.5 respectively.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial years except as described in note 2.2 and 4.1.

41 Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated August 03, 2017
has made certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification includes a definition and explanation
relating to "element of income" and excludes the element of income from the expression "accounting income" as
described in Regulation 63 (amount distributable to unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations. As per the notification,
element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date,
as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period.
Further, the Regulations also specify that element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and
payment of element of income shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net
asset value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying
in unit holders fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available
for distribution. MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified the methodology of determination of income
paid on units redeemed during the year under which such income is paid on gross element received and is calculated
from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. Furthermore, the revised Regulations
also require certain additional disclosures with respect to 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit
Holders' Fund', whereas disclosure with respect to 'Distribution Statement' has been deleted in the revised Regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in
prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income
and distribution of income already paid out on redemption. The net element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during the accounting period which pertained to unrealised appreciation
/ (diminution) held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a separate account and any amount remaining in this
reserve account at the end of the accounting period (whether gain or loss) was included in the amount available
for distribution to the unitholders. The remaining portion of the net element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during an accounting period was recognised in the Income Statement.
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4.2

a)

c)

43

4.4

a)

b)

4.5

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a change in accounting
policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been applied. However, the Management
Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional disclosures requirements
in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', prospectively from July 01, 2017 as
required by SECP vide its S.R.O. No. 756(1) / 2017 dated August 03, 2017. Accordingly, corresponding figures have
not been restated. The ‘Distribution Statement’ for the comparative year has not been presented as it has been
g%lgtgd as a result of the amendments made in the NBFC Regulations the aforementioned SRO issued by the

Had the element of income been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the loss of the Fund would have
been higher by Rs.52.55 million. However, the change in accounting policy does not have any impact on the 'cash
flow statement’, the 'net assets attributable to the unit holders' and 'net assets value per unit' as shown in the
'Statement of Assets and Liabilities' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'. The change has resulted
in inclusion of certain additional disclosures / new presentation requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement
of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund, which have been incorporated in these statements.

Financial assets

The Fund classifies its financial assets in following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss;

- available-for-sale investments; and

- loans and receivables.

The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39: 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement', at the time
of initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis.

Financial assets classified as "at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading’

These include held-for-trading investments and such other investments that, upon initial recognition, are designated
under this category. Investments are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. After initial measurement, such investments are carried at fair value and gains or losses on revaluation
are recognised in the Income Statement.

b)Financial assets classified as 'available-for-sale’

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables or (b) financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss -
held-for-trading'. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to
the needs for liquidity or change in price.

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market
convention are recognized at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell
assets.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss

These investments are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are recognized as expense in the Income
Statement.

Available-for-sale and loans and receivables

These are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
such assets.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets designated by the management as 'at fair value through profit or
loss - held-for-trading' and 'available-for-sale' are valued at fair values determined as follows:
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a)

b)

c)

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Equity Securities

Thehinvestment of the Fund in equity securities is valued on the basis of quoted market prices available at the stock
exchange.

Net gains and losses arising from the difference between the carrying amount and the value determined in accordance
with the criteria mentioned above in respect of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are taken to the
income statement.

Net gains and losses arising from the difference in value determined in accordance with the above mentioned criteria
compared to the carrying amount in respect of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income until the available-for-sale financial assets are derecognized. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized directly in other comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive income to
income statement as a reclassification adjustment.

Government Securities

The investment of the Fund in government securities is valued on the basis of rates announced by the Financial
Market Association of Pakistan, except the Government of Pakistan ljarah Sukuks, which are obtained from MUFAP.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are taken to the income statement.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are taken to the
'statement of comprehensive income' until these are derecognized or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized directly in the 'statement of comprehensive income' is transferred to the 'income
statement'.

Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Fund's assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment in any asset or group of assets. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assets is estimated and impairment losses are recognized immediately as an expense in the income statement.
In case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss-measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses recognized on equity
financial assets recognized in the income statement are not reversed through the income statement. For loans and
receivables, a provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative
financial instruments are carried as asset when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Any change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments is taken to the Income Statement.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired,
have been realized or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Reclassification

The Fund may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset in equity securities out of the 'held-for-
trading' category to the 'available-for-sale' category if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Such reclassifications are made only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is
unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification
date which then becomes the new cost and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before the reclassification
date are subsequently made.
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4.10

4.1

412

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

417

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently stated at amortized cost.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received
by the distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit as of
the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for
duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the investment facilitators, distributors and the
Management Company. Unit Holder's transaction costs are recorded as the income of the Fund.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemption
request during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of the
close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for
transaction costs, if applicable.

Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the statement of asset and liabilities date are considered as non-adjusting
events and are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such distributions are declared.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management determination of weighted
average units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

Taxation

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income available for distribution
for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst the unit holders by
way of cash dividend. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulation, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net accounting income available for distribution
other than capital gains to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provision of Section 113
(minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the Income Statement on the date
at which the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised capital gains / (losses) arising on mark to market of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - held-for-trading’ are included in the income statement in the period in which they
arise.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.
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- Profit on bank deposits is recognized on an accrual basis.
- Return on investments is recognized on an accrual basis.
4.18 Expenses

All expenses including management fee, trustee fee and SECP fee are recognised in the Income Statement on an
accrual basis.

4.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

4.20 Other assets
Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

4.21 Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the income statement. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities are
recognized in the Income Statement.

4.22 Net assets value per unit

The net assets value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note  ------- (Rupees in '000) -------
5. BALANCES WITH BANKS
In current accounts 10,384 54,537
In deposit accounts 5.1 1,882,153 792,429
5.2 1,892,537 846,966

5.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 5.25% to 6.5% (2017: 5.25% to 5.65%) per annum.

5.2 These include a balance of Rs.6.48 (2017: Rs.50.44) million held with MCB Bank Limited and Rs.0.24 (2017: Rs.nil)
million with MCB Islamic Bank Limited (related parties).

6. INVESTMENTS
Investments by Category

At fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading

Listed equity securities 6.1 1,682,283 456,501
1,682,283 456,501

Available-for-sale
Listed equity securities 6.2 137,328 196,421
1,819,611 652,922

594 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

%810 %8¥°0 %S6°0 (909°9) 02'LL 9.8'€e
%81°0 %80 %56°0 (90979) 0/2°LL 9/8°€C 000°22 - - 000°CtL 000°0} pajwI seujsnpu| 821AISS
sollauue) pue JayjeaT
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - -
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 00S‘LvL - - 00S°LyL pajiwi saLsnpu| sselo buey
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 00G°229 - - 00S°229 x«PBNWIT SOlWeIs) % s9|lL JIqqeys
SOjwelad pue sse|9
%EL'0 %00°} %00'Z (ze2'€l) 11£'9¢ 60105
%00°0 %000 %000 - - - - 005'¥1€ - 00S'vLE - Aued pajejos e -
salysnpu| [98)S pue uol| [eybnpy
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 000°GzL - 000°GZl - pajwI salsnpu| uoJ| bejen)
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 00L'v€2 - 00L°0€} 000°v01L PpajwI s|98)g [euoheuldiu]
%EL0 %001 %00°C (zeL'el) 11€°9€ 601°0S 009951} 006°L8 - 00S‘8LL 000°0Z} pajwi saLjsnpu| [euoneuldiu|
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 00L‘v9 - 00¥'SlL 00L'8v pajiwi syonpold pal|ly B [98)S Jusdsald
Bupesuibuz
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - l l
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - 3 3 ol 006'2S - olv'6e 00S'€T pajwI yueg uezesy
s)yueq [e1oJaWIWO)
%29°0 %29'C %2TT'S ¥0S 150'56 LyS'v6
%10°0 %100 %€EL°0 6. 0y’ 434 000°L02 - - 000°L02 - pajiw Ueished [edlwayd apo
%810 %110 %420 £88'c £88'c - 8vZ'0vy - 8vZ'0vy - - (1yBu) papwir sfeonusyd g JewAhlod oibuz
%EY0 %vy'T %88’ (85¥°¢) ¥9.'88 2ee'ee 005'0€8'2 005'269'L - 00§'022'€  00§'2S.L pajwI sjedlwsyd B Jowhjod oibuz
|es1way)
%ES0 %682 %6151 (162°'12) v.1'282 S9v'86E
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 000°2L - 000°Z} - PajiWIT Juswa) Jesuold
%10 %961 %26°€ L6L L 12TELL 9€1'0L 000°€29 00€°28L°L - 00€'S0¥'C - Aued pajejal e - pajwi]
Auedwo) juswa) ueyy '9'q
%€0°0 %EL0 %120 (zs2'1) 298y 7199 000°0S 000°0S - 000°00} - pajwi Auedwo juswa) jeseyd
%120 %Ll %2Cy'€ (S1z°12) 1G61°29 zLE'e8 000°G2e L 000°GZ - 000°00€°L - pajiwi Alojoed Juswa Jea aidepy
%€0°0 %620 %850 (209°1) 2€9°01 vve'zh 005'G91 000099} - 0000012 00S'SZ pajwi Auedwod juswa iine
%¥0°0 %120 %2¥'0 (8v9'0) ¥0L'L 41 a " 009°29 00v'Le - - 000'v6 pajwi Auedwo) Juswa) 1eyoy
%80°0 %65°€ %LV L (092°1L¥) 18¥'0€lL JAZN AN 006'952 005°981 - 0Sv'901 066'9€ wexPONWIT JUBWSD A¥oNT
jJuawagn
%0L°0 %6%°0 %L16°0 (004) 0€LLL 0€8°LL
%01°0 %610 %16°0 (001) 0€L'LL 0€8'LL 000°00S 000‘0ve't - 000°0v€‘L  000°00% pajwi uoipiel3 Yed
spoob |eoL1}oala pue ajqed
%ET0 %¥9'L %LT€ (260°8) £0V'6S 00529
%€ 0 %¥9°L %LT°€ (260°8) €0¥'65 005°29 000°0S - - 000'0S - pajiwi sioj0el] el
%00°0 %000 %00°0 - - - - 000°92 - - 000'9Z pajwir (Uejsiyed) sieQ sepy epuoH
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 00.'81 - 00L'€ 000'GL pajwIT salisnpu| eleypueyo
J9|quIasse ajiqowolny
% - (000, u1 seadny) -
Kuedwos S)asse jau jo syuawysaaul || uteb / (ssoj) anjea anjea 810Z ‘0¢ Jeahk ayy 1eak ayy Jeak 110Z ‘10 Kuedwod aajsanul ay} jo awen
99)saAul ay} abejusosad |ejo03 jo pasijeaiun FENTLTN] Buifuen aunrjesy [Buunp pjos ay} Bunnp | Anp je sy
jo jendes dn-pied e sy abejuaosad paseyaind
|ej03 jo abejuaosad e sy

e se p|ay saleys
jo anjea dn-pred

an|eA jaxie

810Z ‘0€ aunr je se asuejeg

saieys Jo JaquinN

BSIMIBUJO PaJe)s SSa|uN Yoea (| 'Sy Jo saleys Aieuipio pred Ajiny - seluedwod pajsi| o seseys

Buipeuj-10j-p|ay - ssoj 10 jyyoid ybnoayy anjea aiej je, - sannLINdas Ajinba pajsi 19

(o]
=
|
L
=
o
-
<t
(5]
o
-l
-1
<
-
Ll
(2]
(72)
<
o
=
<t
-
)
<
o
=
<
-1
<
0
(=2]
n




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

¥69'6 105'95¥ 908'9tv 2102 ‘0€ 8unr je se [ejol
(1sevzl) €82289°L $€9°908°L 8102 ‘0€ aunr je se [ejo)
%0¢€°0 %09°€ %61°L (289°21) 62801 9Ls‘svl
%¥20 %2E'€ %€9°9 (0£9'6) 829°'021L 8GZ'0¢ElL 000958 - - 0014252 006°€0} Aued pajelal e - pajiwi S|l 1eusIN
%90°0 %820 %950 (250'8) Loz'oL 862’8l 005°G81 - - 005091 000°Ge P3UWIT SJIIN 3IXSL Jooulyoy
a)isodwod a|iyxaL
%LE0 %86°0 %S6°L L1S°'€ 12¥'se 058°LE
%1l€0 %86°0 %S6°L 11G'¢ 12¥'Ge 058°L€E 000°0S€ - - 000°0G€ - pajwr swajshs
%000 %000 %00°0 - - - - 000°'02L - - 000°02t pajw saiBojouyos] [0SIeN
uonesiunwwod pue ABojouysa]
%LE°0 %120 %2¥'0 192 SP9°L ¥8€‘L
%LE0 %120 %Z¥0 19¢ S¥9°'L ¥8€°L 00026 - - - 00026 pajwiI S|y Jebng uesey
salsnpul paljje pue Jebng
%00°0 %000 %000 - - -
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 000°G8 - 000°G8 - paywI Aisuyey %ooRy
Kisuyay
%910 %L6'v %186 (182'22) 1ps'8LL 828°50Z
%100 %S¥0 %060 (9297¢) 8y 9l il 0C 000'768°C 000°'000'% - 000'¥68'Z  000°000‘t « PBIWIT 0L3O3I3-Y
%SG1°0 %9Y' ¥ %168 (509'€2) 601291 vL'g8lL 000'6S.°} 000°2.2 - 000°259°} 000°6.€ wxx PONWIT AUBdWOD JOMOd qNH 8y L
uonnqu}sip pue uonesauab sjamod
%810 %¥y'L %98°C 699y [4:1%4] £8Y'Ly
%91°0 %L1 %l2cT 986'¢ 6920 €82°9¢ ZE€S'ESY 000°2S¢€ - z€5°018 - paywin dov
%c0°0 %€E0 %590 €89 €88°LL 00ZLL 000°'S€ - - 000'se - paywi Auedwod spess sy
s|eannaseweyd
%92°0 %S9'T %82'S (8zs‘zt) 92096 ¥S5‘801
%€EL0 %€V 0 %980 1181 y¥9'SlL €LL¢) 00v'¥S1L - - 00¥'¥S 1 - pajwi sjuealign yosal -IH
%€EL0 %\2TC % vV (98€'v1) 92108 295'v6 000°008 000'029 - 000'02¥} - pajwi sauljadid se9 WayuoN Ing
%00°0 %100 %100 (1) 902 61C 0s¢e - - - 0S¢ PpajiwIT wnajosad 3oony
sajuedwod Buneysew seb pue 10
%S0 %86°01 %26°L2 (1e8) 121'86€ 8G5'66€
%000 %000 %00°0 - - - - 00091 - 000'91 - pajwi] Auedwod wnajonad Hey
%110 %167 %086 Lz 9zz'8.LL SS6'ELL 00€°692 0S¥'SSE - 052029 - pajwI spiaylio ueished
%20°0 %60 %118 (008'%) L19'8vlL LLY'ESL 000°GS6 00v'Lvy - 00282t 000°0C) e POYUWIT Auedwo? Juswdojena( se 3 110
%Z0°0 %86 L %S6°'€ (z0€) 881 981'zL 00S'vee 008'S¥6 - 009°2S1L°L 00L'22) pajwi] wnsjosed ueishied
sajuedwod uonelsojdxa seb pue [I0
%¥0°0 %¥0°0 %80°0 33 oyl V'L
%%0°0 %¥0°0 %800 L 1424% €ev'L 000°'€S - - 000'€S - psjwI uonelodiod Jesyeys v
sjonpoud aies jeuosiad pue poo
%ET 0 %0v"L %SLYL 08LvZ 081892 00L°€ve
%€EL°0 %8S°€ %YL L 616 696621 0scoch 000°GEL ) 000°0€¥ - 000°G9L° - paywI siozlipe4 oibuz
%200 %9€°0 %10 09¥ 096°C1L 00S°CL 000°00¥% 000'v52 - 000001 000'vSe Aped psjejps e -
paywi Auedwo) Jaziiue4 ewne
%10°0 %¥1°0 %820 (z9L'1) 620'G 1619 00v'Sy - - - 00v'Gy pajiwi uohelodio) sa|ndieH poomeq
%210°0 %2E'E %299 €92'GL zes'ozt 6GL'v0L 000°¥8€ 000°LLY - 000°LLL 000°06 pajwi uonelodio) oibuz
PErAINNEE]
% =============- (000, Ul SadNYy) ---
Kuedwod S)asse Jau Jo sjyuawysaautl || uieb / (ssoj) anjeA anjea 810Z ‘0S Jeak ayy Jeak ayy Jeak 2102 ‘10 Auedwod aajsanul ayj jo aweN
93)saAul a3y} abejusosad H [ejo}jo [ pasijeasun FENTLI] Buifuien aunpje sy |Buunp pjos | Buunp | ayj Buunp | Anpie sy
jo jepdes dn-pied e sy | abejuaosad | anss| |paseyoind
|ejo0} jo abejuassad | esy 1 Wby
e se p|ay saJteys
J0 anjea dn-pred I 1
an|eA JayJep 810Z ‘0€ aunr je se asuejeg saleys Jo JaquinN

9SIMIBU}0 paje)s ssajun yoes 0 sy Jo saseys Areulpio pied Ajny - sejuedwod pajsi| Jo saleys

(o]
=
>
L
=
o
-
<t
(5]
o
-l
-1
<
-
Ll
(2]
(72)
<
o
=
<t
-
2
<
o
=
<
m
-1
<
©
(=2]
n




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

%00°0 %10°0 %10°0 - 743 743
%000 %100 %100 - Ll VLl 0S¢ - - - 0s€e aeexPOYWIT SOBESORY
pleog puy Jaded
%00°0 %00°0 %10°0 L 8l 0L
%00°0 %000 %100 1 8Ll 101 002 - - - 00¢ pajWIT Wwnajosdd 0By
sojuedwo) Bunexyiel seo puy 10
%€0°0 %€E6°L %88°E 61561 8.v'0L 668°0S
%000 %600 %610 209°L vor'e 208’ 0922 ovs'6lL - - 008‘Le pajwi Auedwod wnajosed Lep
%200 %080 %191 474" €22'62 LIV 00S'ey - - - 00S'€y pajwIT spidylio ueised
%100 %¥0°L %L10°C z6l'e zelL'le 0€G'vE oov'zye - - - 00v'ezve sexPOUWI Auedwo juswdojanag seo B 110
%00°0 %00°0 %100 €e (4% 96 009 00528 - - 00L'c8 x«xPOHWIT WINSjOJR Uelshed
saiuedwod uonjeso|dxa seb pue |10
%€0°0 %L10°0 %EL0 901 ¥6€C 882'C
%€0°0 %2100 %€EL°0 901 ¥6€°C 882'C 050°¢ - - - 050°€ xxxxPBNWIT SBLISNPU| BOINIBS
sallauue)} pue Jayjea]
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 9 29 9S
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 9 29 95 00L - - - 002 xxxxPOULIT SPOOS 016UZ
sjonpoud aied jeuosiad pue poo
%€0°0 %97°0 %260 (e€6°2) 82591 19761
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - - - 000°9Y - - 000°9¥ Aued pajejas e - paywiry
Auedwo) Jaziipe ewne
%€0°0 %9%°0 %160 (€€6'2) 8259l L9v'61 00z'6vL - - - 00z'6vL pajiwi uonelodio) se|ndseH poomeq
19zi|1o4
%100 %L2°0 %E€S 0 Lys'y 8196 120's
%100 %120 %€S0 L¥SY 8196 120G 000°zt - - - 000Ck paywi ueisiyed |0l
|esjway)
%EL0 %0€°0 %09°0 v16 S16°0L 100°0L
%EL0 %0€°0 %090 716 Sl6°0lL 1000} 000°2€ - - - 000°.¢ «P3YWIT sauIsNpu| ojneuby
soll0ss990k puk Led ajiqowoiny
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - -
%000 %000 %000 - - - - 009} - - 009°} pajwi (ueishied ) sieD sepy epuoH
Ja|quiasse ajiqowony
% == (000, U1 seadny) -
Kuedwoo S)asse }au Jo sjuawisaAul | | (uonnujwip) / anjea anjea 8102 ‘0¢ 1eah ay) 1eak ay) 1eak 2102 ‘10 Kuedwod aaysanul ay} jo aweN
93)SaAul 3y} abejuaoiad |ejo0} Jo uonealddy | jayiep Buifiien aunpijesy |Buunpplog | Buunp | ayj Buunp | Anpje sy
jo jendes dn-pred e sy abejuaosad anss| |paseyoind
|e30} jo abejuassad e sy by

e se p|ay saleys
Jo anjea dn-pied

anjeA jaxyJel

8102 ‘0€ aunf je se asuejeg

saleys jo JaquinN

9SIMIBUJ0 PaJE]S SSBUN Yoes O] Sy Jo saleys Aseulpio pred Ajny - saiuedwod pajsi| Jo seIeys

\3|es-104-3|qejieAe, - sal)LINoas Aynba pajsi z2

(o]
=
>
L
=
o
[
<
(5]
o
-
-1
<
[
L
(2]
(72)
<
o
=
<<
- |
&
<
o
=
<
-1
<
~
(=2]
n




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

W £0'8E"SY SEM S8ILINJSS 9S8} JO }S00 By U

216851 2086V yv6TeT L 2T
986'05 295'SL 00v'29¢ 000°001 pajwi Auedwo) juswdojere(d seo B 110
122°Le 8691 0080l 000'sZ pajwI wawa) Axon
66292 evsie Yy2'6¥9 rL'eeT pajwi Auedwiod Jemod qnH ayL
-====-- (000, --- (saJeys jo sequnp) --- £f3unoes jo aweN
yAY 14 yAY 14 8102
‘og aunp ‘o€ aunp ‘og aunp ‘og aunp
:buibrew jsuiebe [eis)elj0o se (TdDDN) panwi] uejsiied jo Auedwo) Buues|) jeuoneN yum pabpaid aiem sateys Buimojjo4
aleys Jad G'sy JO anjeA a0k} e dABY 9S8y |
aleys Jad G'g'sy Jo anjeA aoe} e aAeY 9say |
¥99°/€ 1Zv'96L 1G2'8G1 /102 ‘0€ dunr je se [ejo].
02s°ze 8Z¢e'LEL 808Vl 8102 ‘0€ aunr je se [ejol
%00°0 %00°0 %000 (1) o¢ Le
%00°0 %000 %00°0 ) 0¢ 1€ L - - - L pajiwI s|eydsoH [euoneussiul BjYS
snoaue||29sI|
%100 %¥0°0 %60°0 - €09°L €09°L
%100 %¥0°0 %60°0 - €09°} €09°} 0sL'6C - 089°L - 00522 xxxxPBNUWI SN BIIXBL JOOUIYON
aysodwo) ajnxaL
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 - - -
%000 %000 %00°0 - - - - 00S°2S - - 00S°2S pajiwi sa1Bojouyos) [osjeN
uoneslunwwo) pue ABojouysay
%20°0 %69'0 %LE L i€ 2567 8€9'v¢
%200 %690 %LE°L 1435 2567 8€9'vC v2'0L2 - - - 92'0L2 aexxPOUWIT AuBdWOD JaMod gnH 8y L
uonNnqgu}sig pue uoljesauas) Jamod
%10°0 %10°0 %20°0 (e2) 65 [4:14
%100 %100 %200 (2€) 96€ 294 €€6'Y - 124 - S8v'y pajwi areguiesH gl
%00°0 %000 %00°0 i €9 6% 98l - 33 - i1 pajwi Auedwod ajeas ayL
s|eslynaseweyd
% - == (000, U1 $89dNY) ---re-romeemn
Kuedwod s)osse Jau Jo sjuawyisaaul | [(uonnuiwip) / anjeA anjea 810Z ‘0¢ J1eak ayy Jeak ayy Jeak 2102 ‘10 Auedwod aa)sanul ayj jo sweN
@3)saAul ay} abejuassad |ejo} Jo uoneaiddy| joxiepn Buifiien aunpjesy |Buunp pjog | Buunp | ayj Buunp | A|npje sy
jo jendes dn-pied e sy abejuasiad anss| [paseyaind
|e303 jo abejuassad e sy by
B se p|ay saieys | snuog
jo anjea dn-pied

anjeA jax)ie

8102 ‘0€ aunr je se asuejeg

saJeys Jo JaquinN

9SIMIBYIO PaJe)S SSajun Yoea (] 'Sy Jo saseys Aseuipio pied Ajjny - seluedwod pajsi| Jo saleys

w gz'6'sy Bunebaibbe yuswuiedwi yum pajsnipe usaq aAey SaIlINOSS 858U} JO dN|EA BUIALED BUL 44y

*xx

o
=
|
L
=
o
-
<t
(5]
o
-
-1
<
-
Ll
(2]
(72)
<
o
=
<
-
2
<
o
=
<
 m
-1
<
0
(=2]
n




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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71

8.1
8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note @  --—---- (Rupees in '000) ------
DIVIDEND, PROFIT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Dividend receivable - 3,157
Profit receivable on deposit accounts with banks 71 10,622 3,057
Other receivable 59 -
10,681 6,214

This includes a balance of Rs.0.19 (2017: Rs.nil) million receivable on a balance held with MCB Islamic Bank Limited
(a related party).

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits with:

- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 8.1 2,500 2,500

- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 8.2 200 200
Advance against IPO subscription - Debt security - 1,000
Advance tax 545 545
Prepaid stability rating fee - PACRA - 57
3,245 4,302

This represents deposit with NCCPL in respect of trading of listed securities.

This represents deposit with CDC on account of initial deposit for opening of investor account for electronic transfer
of book-entry securities.

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Remuneration payable 9.1 5,782 2,478
Sales tax on remuneration payable 9.2 752 322
Expenses allocated by the Management Company 9.3 289 123
Selling and marketing expenses 9.4 3,396 1,593
Sales load payable 3,762 852
Shariah advisory fee 75 75

14,056 5,443

The Management Company has charged remuneration at the rate of 2% of average annual net assets of the Fund.
The remuneration is paid to the Management Company on a monthly basis in arrears.

Sales tax on management remuneration has been charged at the rate of 13% (2017: 13%).

As per regulations 60(3)(s) of amended NBFC regulations dated November 25, 2015, fee and expenses pertaining
to registrar services, accounting, operations and valuation service related to a collective investment scheme (CIS)
are chargeable to the scheme, maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets or the actual cost, whichever
is lower. Accordingly, the management company has charged 0.1% of the average annual net assets with effect
from November 25, 2015, being lower.
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9.4 In connection with Regulation 60(3)(v) of the NBFC Regulations, SECP has issued Circular No. 40 of 2016 dated
December 30, 2016 (later amended vide Circular No. 05 of 2017 dated February 13, 2017) whereby it has prescribed
certain conditions on Asset Management Companies (AMCs) for charging selling and marketing expenses to
collective investment schemes (CISs). In accordance with the provisions contained in these circulars, selling and
marketing expenses will be allowed initially for a period of three years (from January 01, 2017 till December 31,
2019) to be charged to open end equity, asset allocation and index funds upto a maximum of 0.4% per annum of
net assets of the fund or actual expenses, whichever is less. Keeping in view the aforementioned provisions, the
Management Company charged selling and marketing expenses to the Fund during the year.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note @~ - (Rupees in '000) ------
10. PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Remuneration payable 101 372 206
Sales tax on remuneration payable 10.2 48 27
420 233

10.1 The Trustee, CDC is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of
the Trust Deed and Offering Document as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets value of the
Fund. The tariff structure applicable to the Fund in respect of trustee fee is as follows:

Average net assets value Tariff per annum

Up to Rs.1 billion Rs.0.7 million or 0.20% per annum of net assets, whichever is
higher

Amount exceeding Rs.1 billion Rs.2.0 million plus 0.10% p.a. of net assets exceeding Rs.1
billion

10.2 Sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee has been charged at the rate of 13% (2017: 13%).
11. ANNUAL FEE PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (SECP)
This represents annual fee payable to SECP in accordance with Regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, whereby

the Fund is required to pay SECP an amount at the rate of 0.095% (2017: 0.095%) of the average daily net assets
of the Fund.

12. ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) 121 7,622 7,622
Federal Excise Duty payable on management fee 12.2 5,910 5,910
Federal Excise Duty and related taxes payable on sales load 1,136 1,136
Sale load payable to MCB Bank Limited - 1
Charity / donation payable 939 626
Auditors' remuneration 369 470
Zakat payable 15 12
Withholding tax payable 70 546
Brokerage payable 1,126 1,600
Other payables 811 425

17,998 18,348
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12.1 Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015 the Sindh Workers’ Welfare
Fund Act (SWWF Act), 2014 had been passed by the Government of Sindh as a result of which every industrial
establishment located in the Province of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting year is not less than
Rs.0.5 million, is required to pay Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) in respect of that year a sum equal to two
percent of such income. The matter was taken up by the MUFAP with the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) collectively
on behalf of various asset management companies (including the Management Company of the Fund) whereby it
was contested that mutual funds should be excluded from the ambit of the SWWF Act as these were not industrial
establishments but were pass through investment vehicles and did not employ workers. The SRB held that mutual
funds were included in the definition of financial institutions as per the Financial Institution (Recovery of Finances)
Ordinance, 2001 and were, hence, required to register and pay SWWF under the SWWF Act. Thereafter, MUFAP
has taken up the matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry to have CISs / mutual funds excluded from the applicability
of SWWEF which is currently pending. However, as a matter of abundant caution, MUFAP has recommended to all
its members to record a provision for SWWF from the date of enactment of SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May
21, 2015).

The provision for SWWF is now being made on a daily basis. Had the provision for SWWF not been recorded in
the financial statements of the Fund, the net assets value of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher
by Re.0.15 (2017: Re.0.37) per unit.

12.2 Federal Excise Duty on remuneration to the Management Company

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset
Management Companies (AMCs) with effect from June 13, 2013. As the asset management services rendered by
the Management Company of the Fund were already subject to provincial sales tax on services levied by the Sindh
Revenue Board, which is being charged to the Fund, the Management Company was of the view that further levy
of FED was not justified.

On September 4, 2013, a Constitutional Petition was filed in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) jointly by
various Asset Management Companies, together with their representatives of Collective Investment Schemes
through their trustees, challenging the levy of FED.

During the previous year, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders
made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or providing
of services (to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which
is pending adjudication.

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institutions dealing
in services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the
Management Company with effect from July 1, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution, the provision for
FED made prior to this period has been maintained by the Fund which at June 30, 2018 aggregates to Rs.5.91

(2017: Rs.5.91) million. Had the provision for FED not been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund, the
net assets value of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher by Re.0.11 (2017: Re.0.29) per unit.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017

601 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017

...... R in" ————
14. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION (Rupees in '000)

Annual audit fee 250 250
Half yearly review fee 131 125
Other certification and services 75 175

456 550
Sales tax 36 44
Out of pocket expenses 19 108

511 702

15. TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income available for distribution
for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst the unit holders by
way of cash dividend. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulation, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net accounting income available for distribution
other than capital gains to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provision of Section 113
(minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Since the
Fund has incurred net loss for the year, no distribution has been made by the Fund. Accordingly, no provision for
taxation has been recognized in these financial statements.

16. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OUTSTANDING WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / OTHER RELATED PARTIES

Related parties / connected persons of the Fund include the Management Company, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, MCB Bank Limited being the Holding Company of the Management
Company, the Trustee, directors, key management personnel and other associated undertakings and connected
persons. Connected persons also include any person beneficially owing directly or indirectly 10% or more of the
units in the issue / net assets of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing
the affairs of the Fund, other charges, sale and purchase of investments and distribution payments to connected
persons. The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and
at terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Details of transactions and balances at year end with related parties / connected persons, other than those which
have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
16.2 Transactions during theyear: e (Rupees in '000) ------

Management Company
MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
Remuneration (including related taxes) 56,366 26,235
Selling and marketing expenses 9,976 1,593
Expense allocated by the Management

Company and related taxes 2,818 1,337
Shariah advisory fee 900 900
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration ( including indirect taxes) 3,948 2,435
Central Depository Service (CDS) settlement charges 179 76
Group / Associated Companies
MCB Bank Limited
Bank charges 41 24
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Profit on bank deposits 1,960 -
Arif Habib Limited - Brokerage house
Brokerage and settlement charges * 717 288
Next Capital Limited - Brokerage house
Brokerage and settlement charges * 279 371
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
Purchase of 2,405,300 (2017: 515,000) shares 334,231 112,148
Sale of shares 1,782,300 (2017: 515,000) shares 256,661 106,883
Dividend income 14 450
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Purchase of 400,000 (2017: 519,000) shares 12,500 17,055
Sale of 300,000 (2017: 219,000) shares 8,654 7,743
Dividend income 900 681
Pakgen Power Limited
Sale of nil (2017: 722,500) shares - 17,541
Dividend income - 904
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June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) ------

Nishat Mills Limited

Purchase of 752,100 (2017: 386,000) shares 113,771 54,748
Sale of nil (2017: 567,100) shares - 84,025
Dividend income 1,803 1,580

Mughal Iron and Steel Industries

Purchase of 314,500 (2017: Nil) shares 23,588 -
Sale of 314,500 (2017: Nil) shares 22,099 -
Dividend income 61 -

Aisha Steel Mills Limited

Purchase of nil (2017: 1,000,000) shares - 22,291
Sale of nil (2017: 1,000,000) shares - 26,042
Lalpir Power Limited

Sale of nil (2017: 865,000) shares - 19,285
Dividend income - 303

16.3 Balances outstanding at year end:
Management Company

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

Remuneration payable 5,782 2,478
Sales tax on remuneration payable 752 322
Selling and marketing expenses payable 3,396 1,593
Sales load payable 3,705 762
Sales tax payable on sales load 57 90
Shariah advisory fee payable 75 75
Expenses allocated by the Management Company 289 123
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable (including indirect taxes) 372 206
Sales tax on remuneration payable 48 27
Security deposit 200 200

Arif Habib Limited - Brokerage house
Brokerage and settlement charges payable * 18 95

Next Capital Limited - Brokerage house
Brokerage and settlement charges payable * 74 182

MCB Bank Limited

Balances with bank 6,479 50,442
Sales load payable - 1
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17.

171

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) ------

MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Balances with bank ** 243 -
Profit receivable on deposit account with bank 194 -

Nishat Mills Limited
856,000 (2017: 103,900) shares held 120,628 16,487

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
400,000 (2017: 300,000) shares held 12,960 10,107

D.G. Khan Cement Limited
623,000 (2017: Nil) shares held 71,327 -

The amount disclosed represents the amount of brokerage paid / payable to connected persons and not the purchase
or sale value of securities transacted through them. The purchase or sale value has not been treated as transactions
with connected persons as the ultimate counter parties are not connected persons.

This represents balance held in deposit accounts carrying profit at the rate of 5.75% (2017: nil%) per annum.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance.

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, profit rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risks of the Fund are being managed by the Management Company in
accordance with the approved policies of the investment committee which provide broad guidelines for management
of above mentioned risks. The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework.

The Fund financial assets primarily comprise of balances with banks, investment in equity securities of listed
companies classified at 'fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' and 'available-for-sale'. The Fund also
has dividend, profit, deposits and other receivables. The Fund's principal financial liabilities include remuneration
payable to the Management Company, the Trustee and accrued and other liabilities.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following
the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board and regulations laid down
by the SECP, the NBFC Regulations and the NBFC Rules.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, profit rate risk and other price risk.

17.1.1Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are
carried out in Pakistani Rupee.

17.1.2Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market profit rates.
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a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

Presently, the Fund does not hold any variable profit based investment except balances with banks in deposit
account exposing the Fund to cash flow profit rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease as on June
30, 2018, with all other variables held constant, the net assets of the Fund and net income for the year would have
been higher / lower by Rs.18.82 (2017: Rs.7.93) million.

b)  Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

As at June 30, 2018 the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instruments, therefore, the Fund is not exposed to fair
value profit rate risk.

Profit rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity date. The composition of the fund's investment may change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis
prepared as at June 30, 2018 is not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements
in profit rates.

June 30, 2018
Exposed to profit rate risk

More than
three Not
months exposed to
Profit rate Up to three and upto More than profit rate
(%) months one year one year risk Total

------------------------- (Rupees in '000) =-=======n=sm=mmnmmnmnnun
On-balance sheet financial
instruments

Financial assets
Balances with banks 5.25-6.50 1,882,153 - - 10,384 1,892,537
Investments classified as:
- 'at fair value through
profit or loss

held-for-trading' - - - 1,682,283 1,682,283
- 'available-for-sale' - - - 137,328 137,328
Dividend, profit and other
receivables - - - 10,681 10,681
Security deposits - - - 2,700 2,700
1,882,153 - - 1,843,376 3,725,529
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Company - - - 13,304 13,304
Payable to the Trustee - - - 372 372
Payable against purchase of
investments - - - 57,694 57,694
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 2,664 2,664
- - - 74,034 74,034
On-balance sheet gap 1,882,153 - - 1,769,342 3,651,495
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June 30, 2017
Exposed to profit rate risk

More than
three Not
months exposed to
Profit rate Up to three and upto More than profit rate
(%) months one year one year risk Total

------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------=-====n-mnmenuueu--
On-balance sheet financial
instruments

Financial assets
Balances with banks 5.25-5.65 792,429 - - 54,537 846,966
Investments classified as:
- 'at fair value through
profit or loss

held-for-trading' - - - 456,501 456,501
- 'available-for-sale' - - - 196,421 196,421

Dividend, profit and other
receivables - - - 6,214 6,214
Security deposits - - - 2,700 2,700
792,429 - - 716,373 1,508,802

Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company - - - 5,121 5,121
Payable to the Trustee - - - 206 206
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 2,944 2,944
- - - 8,271 8,271
On-balance sheet gap 792,429 - - 708,102 1,500,531

17.1.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factor specific to an individual
investment, its issuer or factors affecting all instrument traded in the market.

The Fund has exposure to equity price risk arising from its investments in equity securities. The Fund manages its
price risk arising from investment in the equity securities by diversifying its portfolio within the eligible limits prescribed
in the Fund’s Constitutive Documents, NBFC Regulations and circulars issued by SECP from time to time. The
Fund’s equity investments are concentrated in the sectors given in note 6.1 and 6.2.

At June 30, 2018, the fair value of equity securities exposed to price risk is disclosed in note 6.1 and 6.2.
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the loss for the year and the unit holders' fund to an increase or
decrease of 5% in the fair values of the Fund’s equity securities. This level of change is considered to be reasonably

possible based on observation of current market conditions. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Fund's equity
securities at each statement of assets and liabilities date, with all other variables held constant.

June 30, June 30,

2018 2017
----- (Rupees '000) -----
Effect due to increase / decrease in KSE 100 index
Investments and net assets 90,981 32,646
Income statement 84,114 22,825
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17.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund, resulting in a financial loss to the Fund. The credit risk of the Fund principally
arises from deposits and other receivable balances.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Fund's policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are approved by the Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimize the
concentration of risk and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty failure.

The Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk related to receivables at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 is the
carrying amounts of following financial assets.
June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
--- (Rupees in '000) ---

Balances with banks 1,892,537 846,966
Dividend, profit and other receivables 10,681 6,214
1,903,218 853,180

All deposits with banks, NCCPL and CDC are highly rated and risk of default is considered minimal.
None of the financial assets were considered to be past due or impaired as on June 30, 2018.

Details of credit rating of balances with banks as at June 30, are as follows:

Rating June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

Bank balances by rating category Long-term / 2018 2017 2018 2017
short-term  ---- (Rupees in '000) ---- ---- (Percentage) ----
Deposit accounts
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited AA+/A1+ - 301 0.00% 0.04%
Meezan Bank Limited AA+/A1+ 4 1,728 0.00% 0.20%
Habib Bank Limited AAA/A1+ 713 50,211 0.04% 5.93%
United Bank Limited AAA/A1+ 324,418 6,292 17.14% 0.74%
Standard Chartered Bank Limited AAA/A1+ - - 0.00% 0.00%
Allied Bank Limited AAA/A1+ 6 6 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Al-Habib Limited AA+/A1+ 26,582 529 1.40% 0.06%
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A/IA1 5 5 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited A+/A1 425,843 151,924 22.50% 17.94%
Silk Bank Limited-Emaan Islamic Bank A-/A2 502,182 - 26.53% 0.00%
MCB Bank Limited AAA/A1+ 243 - 0.01% 0.00%
Askari Bank Limited AA+/A1+ 18 479 0.00% 0.06%
1,882,153 792,429 99.45% 93.56%
Current accounts
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited AA+/A1+ - 1,352 0.00% 0.16%
MCB Bank Limited AAA/A1+ 6,479 50,442 0.34% 5.96%
United Bank Limited AAA/A1+ 1,966 2,743 0.10% 0.32%
National Bank of Pakistan AAA/A1+ 1,939 - 0.10% 0.00%
10,384 54,537 0.55% 6.44%
1,892,537 846,966 100% 100%
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The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2018 is the carrying amount
of the financial assets. None of these assets are impaired nor past due.

Receivables against sale of units

These represent amount held under distribution accounts maintained by the management company for receipt of
subscription money from unit holders. The amount has been cleared subsequently by the Management Company.

Advances and deposits

Deposits are placed with NCCPL and CDC for the purpose of effecting transaction and settlement of listed securities.
It is expected that all securities deposited with NCCPL and CDC will be clearly identified as being assets of the
Fund, hence management believes that the Fund is not materially exposed to a credit risk with respect to such
parties.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration is the relative sensitivity of the Fund’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry
or geographical location. Concentration of risks arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered
into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss
due to the failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually
agreed. Credit risk relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the Fund uses
brokers with high credit worthiness and the transactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery using central
clearing system.

17.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting it's obligations arising from it's financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets or that such obligations will have to be settled
in a manner disadvantageous to the Funds. Liquidity risk also arises because of the possibility that the Fund could
be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a
regular basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s option based on the Fund'’s applicable redemption price calculated
in accordance with the Fund’s constitutive documents and guidelines laid down by the SECP.

The Fund’s policy to managing liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, including estimated
redemptions of units as and when due, without incurring undue losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests
in excess of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying
for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption
requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemptions
during the year.

The liquidity position of the Fund is monitored by Fund Manager and Risk and Compliance Department on daily
basis.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The maturity profile of the Fund's liabilities based on contractual maturities is given below:
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Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee

Accrued and other liabilities

Payable against purchase of
investments

Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee
Accrued and other liabilities

17.4 Financial instruments by category

June 30, 2018

More than More than
one month  three months
Carrying Upto one upto three and upto one
value month months year
-------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------====-==----
13,304 13,304 - -
372 372 - -
2,664 1,126 1,538 -
57,694 57,694 - -
74,034 72,496 1,538 -
June 30, 2017
More than More than
one month  three months
Carrying Upto one upto three and upto one
value month months year
-------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------=-==-=-==----
5,121 5,121 - -
206 206 - -
2,944 1,600 1,344 -
8,271 6,927 1,344 -

As at June 30, 2018, all the financial assets are carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities are categorised
either as 'loans and receivables' or financial assets classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'
and 'available-for-sale'. All the financial liabilities carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities are categorised
as other financial liabilities i.e. liabilities other than 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'.

Assets

Balances with banks

Investments

Dividend, profit and other receivables
Security deposits

June 30, 2018

At fair value

Available-for- through profit

sale or loss - held- Loans and
investments for-trading receivables Total
---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------
- 1,892,537 1,892,537
137,328 1,682,283 - 1,819,611
- - 10,681 10,681
- - 2,700 2,700
137,328 1,682,283 1,905,918 3,725,529
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June 30, 2018

At fair value
through profit Other
or loss - held- financial
for-trading liabilities Total
-------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 13,304 13,304
Payable to the Trustee - 372 372
Payable against purchase of investments 57,694 57,694
Accrued and other liabilities - 2,664 2,664
- 74,034 74,034
June 30, 2017
At fair value
Available-for- through profit
sale or loss - held- Loans and
investments for-trading receivables Total
(Rupees in '000)
Assets
Balances with banks - - 846,966 846,966
Investments 196,421 456,501 - 652,922
Dividend, profit and other receivables - - 6,214 6,214
Security deposits - - 2,700 2,700
196,421 456,501 855,880 1,508,802
June 30, 2017
At fair value
through profit Other
or loss - held- financial
for-trading liabilities Total
-------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 5,121 5,121
Payable to the Trustee - 206 206
Accrued and other liabilities - 2,944 2,944

18. UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations, to maintain
a minimum fund size of Rs.100 million, to be maintained all the time during the life of the scheme. The units issued
by the Fund provides an investor with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the unit
holder's share in the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holders' fund is to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all investors
and to manage liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund
endeavors to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to
meet redemption, such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments.
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19. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as permitted by other IFRSs.
It defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). Adoption of IFRS 13 has not
affected the financial statements.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement
of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities is considered
not significantly different from book value.

The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value
is based on:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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20. SUPPLEMENTARY NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information regarding pattern of unit holding, list of top ten brokers, attendance at the meetings of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company and members of the Investment Committee are as follows:

20.1 Pattern of unit holding
Details of pattern of unit holding
June 30, 2018
Number of Number of Investment Percentage
unit holders units held amount investment
(Rupees in '000) %
Individuals 2,563 38,181,707 2,674,597 73.61%
Insurance companies - - - 0.00%
Retirement funds 2 110,716 7,756 0.21%
Public limited companies - - - 0.00%
Associated companies 2 1,030,698 72,200 1.99%
Others 94 12,548,107 878,985 24.19%
2,661 51,871,228 3,633,537 100%
June 30, 2017
Number of Number of Investment Percentage
unit holders Units held amount investment
(Rupees in '000) %
Individuals 2,041 13,020,901 950,701 64.01%
Retirement funds 37 4,101,200 299,443 20.16%
Public limited companies 2 30,362 2,217 0.15%
Associated companis 2 2,181,978 159,314 10.73%
Others 18 1,007,799 73,583 4.95%
2,100 20,342,240 1,485,258 100%
20.2 Top ten brokers / dealers by percentage of commission paid

Details of commission paid by the fund to top ten brokers by percentage during the year are as follows:

June 30,

2018
(Percentage)

Arif Habib Limited 13.20%

JS Global Capital Limited 10.20%
DJM Securities (Private) Limited 9.42%
AL Falah Securities (Private) Limited 6.74%
Taurus Securities Limited 6.12%
Foundation Securities Limited 6.08%
IGI Securities Finex Limited 5.56%
Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited 5.37%
Next Capital Limited 5.14%
BMA Capital Management Limited 4.93%

616 ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30,
2017
(Percentage)

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited 8.78
Next Capital Limited 712
Arif Habib Limited 5.52
Intermarket Securities Limited 5.25
Top Line Securities (Private) Limited 4.71
Taurus Securities Limited 4.67
JS Global Capital Limited 4.35
BIPL Securities Limited 4.19
Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited 4.18
Foundation Securities Limited 4.00

20.3 Attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year, 134th, 135th, 136th, 137th, 138th, 139th, 140th, 141st and 142nd Board meetings were held on
July 06, 2017, August 04, 2017, September 07, 2017, October 12, 2017, October 20, 2017, February 02, 2018,
February 23, 2018, April 19, 2018 and June 11, 2018 respectively. Information in respect of attendance by Directors
in the meetings is given below:

Number of meetings

Meetings not

Name of Director Held Attended Leave granted attended

Mian Muhammad Mansha 9 4 5 134th, 135th,
136th, 138th,
142nd

Nasim Beg 9 9 - -

Muhammad Saqib Saleem 9 9 - -

Salman Shah 9 7 2 134th, 138th

Haroon Rashid 9 6 3 135th, 136th,
142nd

Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 - -

Samad A. Habib 9 5 4 134th, 136th,
138th, 139th

Mirza Qamar Beg 9 7 2 138th, 142nd

20.4 Particulars of Investment Committee and Fund Manager

Details of members of Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

Names Designation Qualification years

Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem Chief Executive Officer FCA & FCCA 21

Mr. Muhammad Asim Chief Investment Officer MBA & CFA 15

Mr. Saad Ahmed Asset Class Specialist — Fixed MBA 13

Income

Mr. Awais Abdul Sattar Head of Research MBA & CFA 7

Mr. Aitazaz Farooqi Research Analyst BBA & CFA 5

Mr. Syed Abid Ali Asset Class Specialist — MBA 10

Equities
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20.5 Other funds managed by the fund manager
Mr. Awais Abdul Sattar

Mr. Awais Abdul Sattar is the Manager of the Fund as at year end. He has obtained a Masters degree in Business
Administration. Other funds being managed by him are as follows:

- Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund;
- Alhamra Islamic Pension Fund; and
- MCB Paksitan Frequent Payout Fund.

21 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

Total Expense Ratio of the Fund is 3.43% as on June 30, 2018 (2017: 4.03%) and this includes 0.39% (2017:
0.98%) representing Government Levy, Sindh Worker’s Welfare Fund and SECP Fee. This ratio is within the
maximum limit of 4% prescribed under the NBFC Regulation 60 (5) for a collective investment scheme categorised
as an shariah compliant islamic asset allocation scheme.

22. GENERAL

22.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee unless otherwise specified.

22.2 Certain prior year's figures have been re-arranged / re-classified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison in
the presentation in the current year. However, there are no material re-arrangements / re-classifications to report.

23. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 14, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(Management Company)

A

e 2 >

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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|__No. of Unit Holders |  Unit Holdings | Total Units Held |
2022 0-10000 3,470,172
523 10001 - 100000 17,272,022
112 100001 - 1000000 24,524,224
4 1000001 - Onwards 6,604,811
2661 51,871,228
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Total Net Assets Value — Rs. in million 3,634 1,485 821 804 411
Net Assets value per unit — Rupees 70.0492 73.0135 63.52 60.93 49.30
Closing Offer Price 72.4239 75.4887 66.14 62.60 50.66
Closing Repurchase Price 70.0492 73.01 63.52 60.93 49.30
Highest offer price per unit 77.1006 90.63 81.14 69.84 55.91
Lowest offer price per unit 69.8535 66.32 57.86 48.53 48.07
Highest Redemption price per unit 74.5726 87.66 77.92 67.98 54.41
Lowest Redemption price per unit 67.5631 64.07 55.56 47.24 46.78
Distribution per unit — Rs. * 8.00 0.50 6.00 5.00
Average Annual Return - %
One year -4.06 27.74 5.09 35.59 18.89
Two year 11.84 16.42 20.34 27.24 23.64
Three year 9.59 22.81 19.86 27.62 20.99
Net Income for the year — Rs. in million (77.1931) 318.9 10.46 188.63 67.81
Distribution made during the year — Rs. in million - 139.36 6.30 70.41 37.83
Accumulated Capital Growth — Rs. in million (77.1931) 179.54 4.17 118.22 29.97
* Date of Distribution
2017
Date | Rate
June 21, 2017 8.00
2016 2015
Date | Rate Date [ Rate
June 27, 2016 0.5 June 22, 201 6.00
2014
Date | Rate
June 27, 2014 5.00

Disclaimer
The past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investments and returns may go down,
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The Board of Directors of MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (the Management Company of the
fund) have overall responsibility for the implementation of Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is available
on Management Company's website (www.mcbah.com). During the financial year, the Management Company on
behalf of the fund did not participate in 3 shareholders' meeting. Moreover, details of summarized proxies voted
are as follows:

Abstain Reason

Resolutions For Against | Abstain for Abstaining

Number 18 18 0 0 -

(%ages) 100 100 0 0 -

Detailed information regarding actual proxies voted by the Management Company on behalf of the Fund will be
provided without any charges on request of unit holders.
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